## **Minutes**

## City Council Legislative Subcommittee Wednesday, August 23, 2023 at 2:30 p.m. Conference Room A, 1 Junkins Ave., Portsmouth, NH

- I. Greeting: Mayor McEachern. In attendance were Mayor McEachern, Assistant Mayor Kelley, Councilor Tabor, Councilor Cook, Representative David Meuse, City Manager Karen Conard and Senior Assistant City Attorney Jane Ferrini.
- II. Approval of January 27, 2023 Minutes: Councilor Tabor moved and Councilor Cook seconded a motion to approve the January 27, 2023 minutes. The Motion passed on a unanimous vote.
- III. 2023 Legislative Wrap-Up- Senior Assistant City Attorney Jane Ferrini provided a summary of bills tracked and enacted in 2023 as more fully set forth in the copy of the power point attached. One bill that was added to the discussion that was not on the list was HB 321, Chapter Law 189 regarding the review of minutes from non-public meetings. The Committee and Senior Assistant City Attorney Ferrini discussed that the bill requires public bodies to review meeting minutes withheld from public disclosure (non-public) at least every 10 years to determine whether they should continue to be withheld. Minutes not reviewed after 10 years shall be made public. Senior Assistant City Attorney Ferrini discussed that the legal department will be making a recommendation on a policy on how this review should roll out over time.

Representative Muse mentioned that the filing deadline opens for the House on September 11, 2023 and closes on September 15, 2023. He also noted that the Senate's deadline is later and explained how House members can work with Senators to sponsor a bill.

Representative Muse commented on several cannabis bills that did not pass this past session. He stated that there was not one bill that addressed all issues needed to move forward with legalization, including how cannabis is sold, taxed and administered. He further noted that the Governor is concerned about creating a cannabis retail strip. Representative Muse mentioned there had been unresolved discussions regarding creating cannabis retail establishments next to NH liquor stores. Assistant Mayor Kelley mentioned the legalization structure similar to the sale of alcohol (and food). Councilor Cook mentioned the increase in cannabis retail establishments in Portland, ME.

IV. Status update on education funding lawsuits (*ConVal* and *Rand v. State*)-Senior Assistant City Attorney Ferrini provided an update regarding the education funding lawsuits, explaining that the final decision on the *ConVal* matter and the decision on the Cross Motions for Summary Judgment on the issue of the retention of excess SWEPT in the *Rand* matter would likely be issued in September. She noted that no matter what the Judge decides, the decisions in both cases will likely be appealed to the Supreme Court. She noted that if the Court in the *ConVal* matter decides that the definition of what is included in an adequate education excludes required elements, the cost attributed to adequacy per child will increase, and as such, the SWEPT rate would increase throughout the state. She also noted that the Judge asked Counsel in the *Rand* case if their case relative to finding the retention of excess SWEPT unconstitutional would be moot if the *ConVal* decision increased the cost per pupil throughout the state which would increase SWEPT. Counsel for the Petitioner and State agreed that it would.

The Committee discussed with Representative Muse, notwithstanding appeals to the Supreme Court, whether the Legislature would introduce education funding bills next session. Representative Muse noted that in this past session when there was almost an even split between parties there was more potential for the House and Senate to work together. He noted that it was possible after the decisions come out that the Legislature could introduce emergency legislation on the education funding issue. Representative Muse stated that there is a discrepancy between zip codes on education funding and one of the main issues is the tax structure and the history of political football in the attempts to draft legislation to fund education over the years. The Mayor asked if any of these cases considered a taxpayer's ability to pay and Senior Assistant City Attorney Ferrini said they did not and noted there were good statistics from the Report from the Commission on Education Funding completed several years ago.

V. NHMA Legislative Policy Process- Committee to discuss NHMA's legislative policy process and the City's Legislative Policies and the Committee's discussion of legislative issues of interest for next session.

The Mayor asked Representative Muse for good resources on the State's budget. Representative Muse noted that a good breakdown on the state's budget could be found from the NH Fiscal Policy Institute which breaks down the various revenue sourced for the budget, including federal funds.

Representative Muse discussed legislation he is working on regarding placement of kids in out of state schools. The Committee discussed workforce housing and absentee ownership along with a potential homestead exemption for education funding. The Committee also discussed that the City is more like a Boston/NY housing market and how that is not necessarily applicable to the rest of the state. The Committee also noted how important transportation is as a factor in affordable housing and the Committee should continue to work with other towns and the Chamber on affordable housing issues and meals and rooms distribution bills as we have done in the past.

The Committee discussed sending a list of issues of interest from bills we have supported in the past to Representative Muse. One example discussed was the difficulty with commercial valuation of property and the inability to get rents and information on commercial income streams.

VI. Councilor Cook moved and Councilor Tabor seconded a Motion to Adjourn at approximately 4:25 p.m. The Motion passed unanimously.